ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

JO NT MEETI NG

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

March 18, 2011
8:02 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senat or Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Representati ve Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representative Eric Feige
Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W/ son
Representati ve Scott Kawasaki

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Al menbers present

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Representative Alan Dick, Chair
Represent ati ve Sharon C ssna

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON: ALASKA STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION AND EARLY

DEVEL OPMVENT
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -1-

March 18, 2011



W TNESS REG STER

ESTHER COX, Chair

Al aska State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Reviewed the role of the board and various
topics at issue including the inplication of funding cuts to
DEED and the continuation of the high school exit exam and
answered questions from the conmttee regarding the Al aska
Perf ormance Schol arship program and the process of selecting the
current conm ssioner of education.

GERALDI NE BENSHOOF, First Vice-Chair

Public/Fourth Judicial District

Al aska State Board of Education and Early Devel opnment

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions from the comittee
regarding the state's pil ot prekindergarten program

BUNNY SCHAEFFER, Menber

Second Judicial District

Al aska State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

Kot zebue, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions from the comittee
regarding the Al aska Perfornmance Scholarship program and the
effectiveness of distance delivery options for rural schools and
districts.

DONALD HANDELAND, Student Representative

Al aska State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Nonme, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions  of the commttee
regarding his education at M. Edgeconbe H gh School and
di stance educati on.

TI ARNA FI CHLER, I ncom ng Student Representative

Al aska State Board of Education and Early Devel opnment

Depart nment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

Manokot ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions of the committee
regardi ng di stance educati on.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 2- March 18, 2011



PATRI CK SHI ER, Menber

First Judicial D strict

Al aska State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced hinmself and gave an overvi ew of
the board's perspective on alternative delivery nethods.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02: 58 AM

CO- CHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Education Standing Commttees to order at 8:02 a.m
Present at the call to order were Senators Davis, French,
St evens, Co-Chair Thomas and Co-Chair Meyer and Representatives
Seat on, Kawasaki, Feige, P. Wlson and Vice-Chair Pruitt.

VICE CHAIR PRUI TT noted that Chair Dick is at the Tanana Chiefs
Conference and Representative Ci ssna has al so been excused.

PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA STATE BOARD OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY
DEVEL OPVENT

8:04: 13 AM

CO CHAI R MEYER announced that the order of business would be to
hear a presentation by the Alaska State Board of Education and
Early Devel opnent.

He noted the presence of Comm ssioner M ke Hanl ey.

8:04: 38 AM

ESTHER COX, Chair, Alaska State Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
(DEED, said the board neets in Juneau in March in order to have
the opportunity to interact with the Senate and House Education
Standing Conmittees. She rem nded the committee that the Al aska
State Board of Education and Early Developnent is a voluntary
board appointed by the governor. A full term for a nenber is
five years and no nore than four nenbers of the board can be of
the sane political party as the governor. She noted that there
should be one nenber representing each of the four judicial
districts in the state of Al aska and at |east one nenber should
come from a REAA [Regional Education Attendance Areas]. She
noted that the board also has two advisory board nenbers. There
is one student representative, in addition to an incomng
student representative or "student in waiting." The board also

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 3- March 18, 2011



has a mlitary advisor, Colonel Gant Sullivan. She noted that
Senator Davis has served on the board with distinction.

8:09: 18 AM
She asked the board nenbers to introduce thenselves and the
districts they represent:

e Patrick Shier: First Judicial District

* Geral dine Benshoof: Fourth Judicial District

* Bunny Schaeffer: Second Judicial District

e JimMerriner: Public-at-I|arge

* Donal d Handel and: Student Representative

e Phillip Schneider: Third Judicial D strict

e Tiarna Fischler: Incomng Student Representative

M5. COX noted that Janel Keplinger [representing the public-at-
| arge] was unable to attend the commttee neeting.

She continued that it was startling to understand that the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED) had been
cut $4 mllion this year. She explained that this funding
decrease nmeans the cut of a couple of prograns: the pre-K
program and the Teacher Mentor Program She opined that the
Teacher Mentor Program has done amazing things, with 68 to 80
percent of teachers who were nmentored in this program retained.
She noted that, statistics show that between seasoned teachers
and new teachers, seasoned teachers' students score 20 to 30
percent hi gher than new teachers' student. The exception to this
is if a new teacher has been nentored. This proves that the
Teacher Mentor Programis working.

8:.13: 03 AM

M5. COX added that the Departnment of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent (DOLWD) has had a $1 million cut which goes towards
career technology. She said that there is currently a bill on
the table regarding the increase in conpul sory school age from
16 to 18 years old [SB 9]. She said that there are argunents on
both sides of this issue; however, it is inportant to have
alternative options other than just the standard delivery
option. She said one of the best alternative options is hands-on
career education. She explained that this keeps students in
school who may want to drop out in order to get this "hands-on
experience." She noted that the board's Career and Technical
Education Plan, which cane directly out of the board' s summt
for the Alaska Education Plan, is in the process of being
i npl emented and al so carries a fiscal note.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -4- March 18, 2011



She said that the board has included for the conmttees a |ist
of topics that it has discussed this year and are ready to speak
to any of the topics the conmttees would |ike to address.

M5. COX said the high school exit exam is an accountability

factor and the board is not willing to give that factor up.
However, she explained that the board recognizes the need for
sonme revitalization of the exam and standards and wll be

revisiting and redesigning Al aska's standards inmediately. She
expl ained that the board has not adopted the national standards

because it is wusing Al aska's standards. The board wll be
| ooking into a nunmber of subjects at its June neeting involving
these standards and wll then conme to the legislature wth

reconmendat i ons.

8:19:40 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER noted that M. Cox served on the scholarship
funding task force over the last interim He said with 30 days
left in the session the legislature wll have to nmake sone
decisions on the Al aska Performance Schol arship [APS] program
He asked if Ms. Cox has any comments to share with the commttee
on the program

M5. COX referred the conmttee to a resolution fromthe Board of
Education which supported the APS being a nerit-based
schol arshi p. She recognized that the House and Senate Education
commttees were struggling with the needs-based conponent. She
said that when she was on the task force committee she had hoped
t hat the needs-based conponent would file through the
Al askAdvantage program and the nerit-based scholarship would
remai n separate. She said that the way she views the nerit-based
scholarship is that every student can do it, because al
students start at the sane point. She stressed that she is
confident that this wll place nore rigor into high school
curricul uns.

CO CHAIR MEYER said that the Senate Education Standing Commttee
passed out the APS program |leaving the nerit-based conponent
intact; but also including a conponent that would allow a
certain percentage of the funding to go to the Al askAdvantage
program

He said that there has been a |lot of discussion on various pre-K
prograns. There has also been a |ot of discussion on an acadeny
for students after they graduate in order to avoid taking
remedial classes in college. He said that he recognizes that

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 5- March 18, 2011



these two topics are intertwined. He asked if she has any
comments on this.

8:23:45 AM

GERALDI NE BENSHOCF, First Vice-Chair, Public/Fourth Judicial
District, Alaska State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED), said that
the board feels the pilot pre-K program should continue and one
year of data is not efficient in order to nmake a decision on it.
She said that a pilot programis neant to get concrete data in
order to know what a good program should be and whether it
shoul d continue. She noted that the board was pleased with the
data it received from the first year of the program She said
that she recognizes that funding is in question for the pre-K
pilot program this year and the board would like to see the
fundi ng conti nue.

She recognized that there are nmany individuals in Al aska that

see this program as sonething that w Il becone universal. At
sone point the legislature wll have to nake a decision on
whether this will occur and will need to recognize that doing so
will be costly. She noted that the pre-K pilot program was on a

grant basis. Many of the pre-K pilots were run in conjunction
with Head Start prograns and this funding hel ped expand the
nunber of children that were in the program She noted that the
data from the first year of the program is in the board' s
packet .

8:27:04 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said he had read that sone individuals believe
that the services provided through the pilot were duplicative to
what Head Start is already doing. He asked for confirmation
that, in her view, the pilot programdiffers in what it has been
doi ng.

M5. BENSHOCF replied that in her understanding the program was
expanded fromthe Head Start program

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said one of the grant prograns for the
pilot pre-K program was hone school based. He asked if she is
famliar with this particular set of data.

M5. BENSHOOF replied that the prograns were eval uated, however
with regard to what exactly each program was |i ke she could not
conment .

8:28:49 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 6- March 18, 2011



SENATOR STEVENS said he appreciates Senator Davis' bill that
establishes better communication with the board [SB 1]. He noted
that he has the greatest respect for Comm ssioner Hanley.
However, the comm ssioner of the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent is the only one that the |egislature does not
confirm The process of selecting a conmssioner is extrenely
inmportant to the legislature and there were questions that arose
as to how the current comm ssioner of DEED was chosen. He
expl ained that his understanding of the rules is that the board
sel ects several nanmes that are sent to the governor for a fina
selection. He said that he is not sure that this happened this
time. He asked what the rules are under which the board and the
governor select the conm ssioner and how this happened this
tine.

M5. COX replied that the statute is fairly specific. The board
sel ects and sends a nanme to the governor's office, which is then
approved by the governor. She explained that, in this particular
i nstance, she had a conversation with the governor's office who
gave her a nane, which she took to the board. She expl ai ned that
the board exam ned the resune and interviewed the candi date and
she did not make up or assign questions for the board to direct
towards the candidate. After the interview the board could have
done one of two things: send the nane to the governor or screen
and interview alternative candidates if the board did not
believe that individual could represent the students in the
state. She explained that after the board's interview with M ke
Hanley the board came to the conclusion that he had the
characteristics, people and conmunication skills, and the
adm nistrative background to be conm ssioner of DEED. She
recogni zed that this is a different process than the |egislature
normal Iy goes through. She asked if there is another board that
sel ects a conmm ssi oner.

SENATOR STEVENS replied that the Departnment of Fish and Gane's
board does select the conm ssioner. However, that |egislature
reviews and confirns the conm ssioner.

M5. COX said "the bottom line is the governor is still in
charge; because the governor can accept or turn down that nane
and the board then has to go back to the drawing board."” She
noted that this has happened in the past.

SENATOR STEVENS stressed that he nmeans no disrespect to anyone
in the process. However, this is such an inportant issue to
Al aska and education. He asked if she is convinced that the
i ndependence of the Board of Education was respected.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -7 March 18, 2011



M5. COX replied yes; the board still had the option to say "yes"
or "no." She noted that, in her opinion, the way the
commi ssioner of education is chosen is a different system
However, the system does work and it is a respect to the board
to have them involved in choosing the conm ssioner. She said
that the statute states that the comm ssioner serves at the
pl easure of the board.

SENATOR STEVENS sai d he appreci ates her expl anation.

SENATOR DAVIS asked for confirmation that Ms. Cox went to the
governor who gave her a name, which she then brought back to the
boar d.

M5. COX replied that she did not go the governor; the governor's
of fice contacted her.

SENATOR DAVIS asked for confirmation that she did go to the
governor to get the nane.

M5. COX reiterated that the governor's office contacted her and
gave her a nane.

SENATOR DAVIS asked if this is the standard procedure for the
board when | ooki ng for a candi dat e.

M5. COX replied that she has been a part of selecting three
commi ssioners and each tinme has been different. She said wth
the first governor, there was no conmunication. Wth the second
governor it was a very long and involved process, involving
several different nanes. She noted that there has always been
communi cation between the existing conmm ssioner and the
governor's office. She explained that the board wants to make
sure that the conm ssioner is soneone that the governor can work
wi t h.

8:38: 21 AM
SENATOR DAVIS asked for confirmation that the board did not
i nterview anyone el se for the comm ssioner's job.

M5. COX replied yes.
SENATOR DAVI S commented that the statute clearly states that the
Board of Education has the responsibility to select and

interview candidates for this position. She asked for
confirmation that this is the board' s role.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 8- March 18, 2011



M5. COX replied yes. She noted that she checked wth the
attorney general's office to nake sure that the board was doing
everyt hing according to the statute.

SENATOR STEVENS said he appreciates Ms. Cox's years of service.
He asked if she feels the obligation to discharge the
conm ssioner if they are not performng in a way that the board
feels is right.

M5. COX answered that, according to the statute, the board does
have that right. She noted that she has thought about that when
selecting and choosing a candidate so that issue will not have
to come up later. She said that if the issue did arise, the
board would go forth with its obligation

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the comnmttees' concern is wth
the process. The statute is witten in order take politics as
far away from education as possible. The concern from a nunber
of menbers of the House Education Standing Conmttee is whether
the board is setting a precedent that allows the governor the
ability to select the conmssioner of DEED rather than the
board. He said that the legislature has gone as far as it can to
i nsul ate education from politics. He added that he believes this
is one of the reasons why this position is not confirnmable. The
substitution for this is that the board interviews and forwards
names, rather than have it be a political request or decision.
He said he wanted to express concern for the process going
forward in the future.

M5. COX replied that she wunderstands wanting to divorce the
sel ection of the conm ssioner frompolitics as nuch as possible.
She rem nded the committee that the board has had nanes rejected
in the past. She stressed that the board does the work as the
statute states, but the final approval is fromthe governor.

CO- CHAIR MEYER noted that the committees may want to visit the
statute at another tinme.

8:43: 45 AM
CO CHAI R THOVAS asked what the board's stance is on counseling
and advising in high school and how districts are addressing
this issue.

M5. COX replied that the board has not taken a stance on this

i ssue. She noted that she is delighted to see that there is a
provision in the scholarship bill on counseling and advising.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -9- March 18, 2011



She continued that there are three basic tenets for mddle
schools: intranural sports, team ng, and advisory prograns. She
said that incorporating all three of these tenets is a training
and professional growh issue for teachers. Many of the state's
hi gh schools have noved to smaller learning comunities to all ow
for nore personalized interactions between teachers and
students. She said that this is nmuch easier and nore malleable
at a mddle school age, rather than high school.

8:47:41 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked if the board were to take this issue up,
whet her advising would arise as sonmething that should be taught
during teacher preparedness education at the University of
Al aska.

M5. COX replied that how to deal with small groups of young
people is an excellent suggestion. She noted that as president
of the National Association of Secondary School Principals, they
wote a treatise called Breaking Ranks: Changing an Anerican
Institution. She explained that one of the concepts in that
treati se was that education needs to be personalized. She said
that part of the reason that alternative prograns are successful
with young people is because there are fewer students in the
program and they get closer to an adult. She agreed that the
board shoul d be tal ki ng about this.

CO CHAIR MEYER said one concern that he has about the Senate
Education Standing Conmttee is that all of the nenbers nanely
represent urban areas. He noted that there is a rural student
representative on the board, in addition to a conmttee nenber.
He asked for feedback on how the rural areas can be better
reached with regard to long-distance learning and getting all
schools up-to-speed with the high standards set by the APS
program

M5. COX replied that Kotzebue, Nome, and Manokotak are
represented on the board.

8:50: 58 AM
BUNNY SCHAEFFER, Menber, Second Judicial District, Alaska State
Board of Education and Early Devel opnent, Departnment  of

Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), replied that the Virtual
School Network currently being devel oped includes 11 networks,
which is being led by SERRC |[Southeast Regional Resource
Center]. She opined that the nost effective way to learn is with
direct contact wth a highly qualified teacher. Distance

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 10- March 18, 2011



delivery should not be the end-all to the scholarship program
and nore work i s needed.

8:52: 40 AM

DONALD HANDELAND, Student Advisor, Alaska State Board of
Education and Early Devel opnent, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), said he attends M. Edgeconbe Hi gh
School, which is a boarding school that includes a lot of rura
students. He noted that this boarding school is an exanple of
students who want to get a different kind of education. The best
way to reach rural students is through distance education, but
it needs to be integrated with educated individuals comng to
the villages to work with students.

8:53:39 AM
TI ARNA FI SCHLER, Incom ng Student Representative, Al aska State
Board of Education and Early Devel opnent, Departnment  of

Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED), said that she does not
have a | ot of experience with distance-delivery prograns and she
agrees with M. Schaeffer on the inportance of face-to-face
time.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked whether the |egislature should
wait on the Al aska Performance Schol arship program until "things
are set up better.”

M5. SCHAEFFER replied, in her opinion, it is a disservice to
rural students iif the system is not set up to offer the
necessary classes in order for rural students to be eligible for
t he program

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked for confirmation that the
| egislature should wait on the scholarship program until the
system has been set up to accommpbdate all students.

M5. SCHAEFFER replied yes; in order for the program to be
successful for all students.

SENATOR STEVENS noted that this is a serious coment. He
expl ai ned that his understanding was that the individual aiding
the student with a distance delivered class would be a teacher's
aide. He noted that in the Joint H gher Education Task Force
the NEA [ National Educati on Associ ati on] representative's
expectation was that there would be a qualified teacher on both
ends. This beconmes enornously expensive. He asked, with regard
to distance education, if there is a highly qualified teacher

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -11- March 18, 2011



delivering a course from a centralized |ocation, who should be
hel pi ng the student on the other end.

MS. SCHAEFFER replied that in order for distance education to be
successful it is inportant to have a certified teacher on the
student's end. She explained that instructional aides do not
have the educational background that a certified teacher has.

She said that the other area of concern is on the SAT and ACT
testing requirenents. In wurban areas there are centers for
training and test preparation, which rural students do not have.

SENATOR STEVENS said he respects what she and the NEA
representative have said. He explained that having a certified
teacher on both ends for a distance education course is
enor nousl y expensi ve.

8:57:37 AM
CO-CHAIR THOVAS said he shares Ms. Schaeffer's concerns on this
issue. He said "if we seek perfection we wll never do

anything.” He noted that recently a regional corporation |eader
indicated that schools such as M. Edgeconbe may be an interim
solution. He asked M. Handeland if this has been a better
education for him in conparison to where he initially went to
school .

MR. HANDELAND replied that nost of the students that attend M.
Edgeconbe H gh School enjoy it, because they have to apply for
the school and it gives students nore responsibility. He
expl ained that those who go to M. Edgeconbe want to be there
and this is a large reason why this high school is successful.
He noted that M. Edgeconbe offers many opportunities that he
woul d never have received in his hone community.

SENATOR FRENCH asked the student representatives if they have
had any experiences with distance delivery.

MR. HANDELAND replied no.
MS. FI SCHLER replied no.
SENATOR FRENCH commented that at a previous commttee neeting
the commttee had asked DEED for a list of schools who either
offered the full curriculum necessary for the scholarship

program or provided broadband access in order to receive
di stance delivery courses.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -12- March 18, 2011



CO CHAIR MEYER replied that there should be a list avail able of
all the schools and includes this information.

9: 02: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE said he understands why the union would
want to have a highly qualified teacher on both ends. He asked
if there is a need to have a highly qualified teacher in that
particular subject present or could it be a teacher in any
subject to assist with the teaching.

M5. SCHAEFFER replied, in her opinion, the teacher wouldn't have
to be qualified in that particul ar subject.

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked why an aide would not be sufficient
in assisting a student with a distance education cl ass.

M5. SCHAEFFER replied that, in her district, nost of the aides
are in the elenmentary level, not high school. She said that as
far as being able to assist students, she has seen sonme poor-
quality instructional aides. She said "if | was a parent
woul dn't want them being responsible for ny children's
education.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the House Education Standing
Commttee has had a superintendent from different areas of the
state speak during the first part of the commttee's neetings
He noted that it was interesting to discover that urban
districts are identifying the inportance of students taking a
di stance delivered course as a tool for future preparation and
community involvenment. He questioned why rural areas would deny
that if this is sonething that the urban districts are saying is
vital to learning. He asked whether the board has been | ooking
into thene-based and project-based education as opposed to
singl e class subjects.

M5. SCHAEFFER replied no. Typically the board does not delve
that deep into the school systenms in regards to the different
types of curriculuns offered.

9:08:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked whether the board has thought
ahead of ways to nmke education nore relevant to children in a
way that doesn't necessarily cost noney. She noted that the
changes and results that some schools have seen don't always
cost noney, such as thene-based and project-based educati on.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 13- March 18, 2011



CO- CHAIR MEYER comented that, overall, the conmttee would
wel come any creative ideas that are working for particular
school s and districts.

M5. SCHAEFFER replied that the board has devel oped, through the
Education Summt, the Al aska Education Plan. This plan includes
wor ki ng groups, which try to devel op these types of ideas within
particular areas (such as graduation, early childhood, and
literacy). She noted that curriculumis adopted by |ocal schoo
boards; the state board does not conme up wth what the
curriculumnust be for the entire state.

CO-CHAIR MEYER noted that the conmmittee would |love to hear the
board's ideas and thoughts later on as well.

9:15: 23 AM
PATRI CK SHI ER, Menber, First Judicial D strict, Alaska State
Board of Education and Early Devel opnent, Departnment  of

Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), noted that the board is
attenpting to challenge the traditional delivery nethod. He said
that Dr. Bryan Ray of the National Honme Educators Research
Institute published a panphlet titled Honme Education on the
Threshold. This research shows that if a child is outside of
school, teacher certification and economc factors do not
correlate with student success. DEED is very interested in
achi evement based matricul ation, however, No Child Left Behind
has "sucked up all the oxygen" for nmany years. He noted that
DEED has been working to inprove alternative delivery nethods
and is trying to help districts who are doing different things
to neet the needs of its students. The board is exam ning
alternative delivery and eval uation met hods, i mprovi ng
graduation rates, teacher quality, and the teacher nentor
program He noted that the state is hiring 1,000 new teachers
per year, many of which are not from Al aska. He recommended t hat
the commttee view the UTube video, Did you know 4.0, produced
by Shi ft Happens.

9:22:12 AM
COCHAIR MEYER encouraged the board to continue this
commruni cati on

9:22: 47 AM

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 9:22 a.m

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -14- March 18, 2011



